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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 8" Annual Report together with the Audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31 , 2019,

I. FINANCIAL RESULTS
(Rs. in lakhs)

Item FY 2018-19 FY 2017-18
Total Revenue 267.24 247.60
Net Profit/(Loss) before Tax (1317.84) (1,048.20)
Tax adjustments for earlier years 10.49 -
Net Profit/ (Loss) after Tax (1328.33) (1,048.20) |

2. DIVIDEND

In view of the loss incurred during the year, no dividend is recommended for the year under
review.,

3. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT TO RESERVES

During the financial year 2018-19, your Company has not transferred any amount to reserves.

4. REVIEW OF THE PROJECT AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

The Company had undcrtaken the development of a residential project at Sarai Rohilla-
Kishanganj, Delhi on land to be leased by the Rail Land Development Authority (RLDA).
Since the Company was unable to achieve the said financial close within the agreed
timelines, the Development Agreement
(DA) cntered with RLDA has been terminated. Pursuant to deemed termination of DA, the
Company had requested RLDA to refund the amounts paid to RLDA towards lease premium
along with interest thereon, after making necessary deductions as provided under the terms of
DA. RLDA refused to refund the said amounts paid by the Company, the dispute was
referred (o arbitration and the Arbitral Tribunal by its award dated November 25, 2017, asked
RLDA to refund Rs. 1034,53,77,913/- (Rupees One Thousand Thirty Four Crores Fifty Three
Lakhs Seventy Seven Thousand Nine Hundred Thirteen Only) along with the interest at the
ratc of 4% per annum from July 16, 2015 till the date of payment. RLDA had filed its
objections before the Delhi High Court for setting aside the Arbitral award. However, Delhi
High Court upheld the decision of the Arbitral Tribunal. RLDA thereafter filed appeal before
the Division Bench of Delhi High Court. The Hon’ble Delhi High Court dismissed the appeal
filed by RLDA and upheld the order of Delhi High court and award of Arbitral Tribunal vide
its judgment dated 14 March 2019. The Company has also filed cnforcement petition for the
Parsvnath Roil Lond Project Pyt. Ltd,

enforcement of the award dated 25 November 2017,
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND THE STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the year under review, your Company earned other income of Rs. 267.24 lakhs as
compared to income of Rs. 247.60 lakhs during the previous year. The loss after tax during
the year under review is Rs. 1,328.33 lakhs which is higher than the loss after tax of Rs.
1,048.20 lakhs in the previous year 2017-18.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY

No material changes and commitments occurred between the end of the financial year under
review and the date of the report.

3. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Your Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies,

6. PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any public deposits under Sections 73, 74 and

76 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review and there is no overdue deposit
outstanding on the said date,

7. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the year under review and the period subsequent thereto, Mr. Vivek Garg, Director of
the Company resigned from directorship with effect from August 3, 2018 and Mr. Rahul
Kumar Srivastav was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from
November 14, 2018 to hold office up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Further, Mr. Raj Kumar Jain, resighed from directorship with effect from May 29, 2019 and
Mr. Arvind Kumar Mishra was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with
effect from May 29, 2019 to hold office up to the date of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Furthermore, Vipul Kumar Gocl, Company Secretary of the Company resigned with effect
from May 18, 2019.

The Board at present comprises of threc non-executive directors- Mr. Atul Jain, Mr. Arvind
Kumar Mishra and Mr. Rahul Kumar Srivastav.

There are proposals for confirmation of appointment of Mr. Arvind Kumar Mishra and Mr.
Rahul Kumar Srivastav as Directors of the Company, subject to approval of members in the

ensuing Eighth Annual General Meeting of the Company.
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The Company is required to appoint a Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director/Whole
Time Dircctor/Manager and a Chief Financial Officer in terms of Section 203(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies {Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, for which efforts are being made to identify suitable
petsons.

The Company being a listed company is required to appoint two Independent Directors on the
Board of the Company pursuant to the provisions of section 149(4) of the Companies Act,
2013 and Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualiftcation of Directors) Rules,
2014. Efforts are being made to identify suitable persons for appointment as Independent
Directors on the Board of the Company to comply with the statutory requirements.

8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of
the Companies (Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, the Company has
constituted two Board Level Committees, namely:

I.  Audit Committee
II.  Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Company shall re-constitute the Audit Committee and the Nomination and Remuneration
Committce after the appointment of Independent Directors since the Companies Act, 2013
requires that Independent Directors should form a majority in the constitution of these
committees.

9. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

Board Meeting

During the financial year 2018-19, the Board met five (5) times with adequate quorum on
May 28, 2018, September 4, 2018, November 14, 2018, December 11, 2018 and March 28,
2019,

The attendance at the Board Meetings held during the year under review is as under:

Number of Meetings | Number of Meetings
S. No. | Name of the Directors w'hlch . attended
director was entitled to
attend
1. Mr. Vivek Garg 1 1
2. Mr. Raj Kumar Jain 4 4
3. Mr. Atul Jain 5 5
4, Mr. Rahul Kumar Srivastay 3 3

N 2
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Audit Committec Mceting

During the financial year 2018-19, the Audit Committee of Board of Directors met four (4)
times with adequate quorum on May 28, 2018, September 4, 2018, November 14, 2018 and
March 28, 2019,

The attendance at the Audit Committee Meetings held during the year under review is as

under:

S. No. | Name of the Members Number of Meetings Number of Meetings
which member was attended
entitled to attend

1. Mr. Vivek Garg 1 !

% Mt. Raj Kumar Jain 3 3

3. Mr. Atul Jain 4 4

4, Mr. Rahul Kumar Srivastav 1 1

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting

During the financial year 2018-19, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Board of
Directots met once with adequate quorum on September 4, 2018,

The attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting held during the
year under review is as under:

S. No. | Name of the Number of Meetings which | Number of Mecetings
Members member was cntitled to attended
attend
1. Mr. Raj Kumar Jain 1 1
2. Mr. Atul Jain 1 1 |
10. BOARD EVALUATION

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee laid down the criteria for evaluating the
performance of the Board, various Committees of the Board and of the individual Directors.

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board
Committees and individual Directors pursuant to the provisions of the Section 134 (3) (p) of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule 8(4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014.

The performance of the Board and the individual Directors was cvaluated on the basis of
criteria such as Board composition and structure, effectiveness of the Board process,
information and functioning, contribution of the individual Directors to the Board and
Committees meeting like preparedness on the issue to be discussed, meaningful and

constructive contribution and inputs in mecting, etc.
Parsvnath Rail Land Project Pvt, Lid.
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11. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION
AND OTHER DETAILS

The Nomination and Remuneration policy adopted and followed by Parsvnath Developers
Limited (holding company) is applicable to the Company. Saltent features of the said policy
are as follows:

a) Remuneration to Managing Director / Whole-time Directors:

The Remuneration/ Commission ete. to be paid to Managing Director /
Whole-time Directors, etc. shall be governed as per provisions of the Act
and Rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in
force and the approvals obtained from the shareholders of the Company.

b) Remuneration to Non-Executive / Independent Directors:

i.  The Non-Executive/ Independent Directors may receive sitting fees and
such other remuneration as permissible under the provisions of the Aect.
The amount of sitting fees shall be such as may be recommendéd by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of
Directors.

ii.  All the remuneration of the Non-Executive / Independent  Directors
(excluding remuneration for attending meetings as prescribed under
Section 197 (5) of the Act shall be subject to ceiling/ limits as provided
under the Act and rules made there under or any other enactment for the
time being in force. The amount of such remuneration shall be such as may
be recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and
approved by the Board of Directors or shareholders, as the case may be.

c) Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Managcment:

The remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management
may consist of fixed pay and incentive pay, in compliance with the
provisions of the Act and in accordance with the Company’s Policy.

12. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, states that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2019, the
applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation
relating to material departures;

(b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true
Parsvnath Rail Land Project Pyt. Ltd.
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and fair view of the state of attairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and
of the loss of the Company for that year;

(¢) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

(d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively; and

(f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(ca) of the Companies Act, 2013, no fraud has been reported by
the Auditors of the Company.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are given in Notes to the Financial Statements annexed to and
forming part of the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss of the Company. The
transactions with the Related Parties were done in the normal course of business and strictly
on commercial terms at an arm’s length basis.

The Company has not entered into any contracts or arrangements covered under Section 188
of the Companies Act, 2013 with its Related Parties as defined under section 2(76) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

14. AUDITORS
(a) Statatory Auditors

M/s. S.N. Dhawan & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No, 000050N),
were appointed as Statutory Auditors to hold office for a term of five years from the
conclusion of Fifth Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on September 30, 2016 until the
conclusion of Tenth Annual General Meeting for conducting the audit for the financial years
2016-17 to 2020-21 at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the
Company, subject to ratification of such appointment by members at each of the intervening
Annual General Meeting. As per the amendment in the Companies Act, 2013 effective from
May 7, 2018 ratification of the appointment is no longer required and hence, has not been
included in the notice of the AGM.

The operations of the Company do not require maintenance of cost records and cost audit, in
terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thercunder.
Parsvanath Rail Land Project Pvt, Ltd,
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Statutory Auditors Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report for the
financial year cnded 31¥ March 2019.

However, the Auditors have made certain observations in clause (vii) of the Annexure A to
their Report to which response of your Directors are explained as under:

¢ Tax Deducted at source (TDS) not deposited and outstanding for a period of more
than six months- Due to the delay in the return of the amounts deposited with the
RLDA consequent to the arbitration proceedings, the Company is facing shortage of
funds and hence the TDS and interest thereon amounting to Rs. 795.68 lakhs as stated
in the Audit Report could not be deposited.

(b) Secretarial Auditors and Secretarial Audit Report

The Company had appeinted M/s Upender Jajoo and Associates, Company Secretaries, to
conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2018-19. The Secretarial
Audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2019 is annexed hereto as Annexure I to
this Report. The Sccretarial Auditors in their report to the Members have made cerlain
observations, and the response of your Directors is as follows:

I. The Company is in the process of identifying suitable persons to be appointed as
Independent Directors and Woman Director on the Board of the Company in terms of
Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. The Company had constituted an Audit Committee and a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee in the meeting of the Board of Directors held on May 21,
2015 but they did not have any Independent Directors. The Committees shall be re-
constituted as per the requirements of Sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 after the appointment of Independent Directors.

3. The Company had appointed Mr. Santosh Kumar Jain, Chartered Accountant, as the
Internal Auditor of the Company in the Board meeting held on May 24, 2016 and he
continued to be the Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2017-18.

4. The Company is in the process of identifying suitable persons to be appointed as the
Managing Director / Chief Executive Officer/ Manager/ Whole-time Director and
Chief Financial Officer as required in terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company is facing severe liquidity problems, is incurring
losses and does not have any project. Thus, the Company is finding it difficult to
offer suitable remuneration to appoint the managerial personnel as per regulatory
requirements.

5. Since the Company did not have Independent Dircctors, therefore the question of
their Performance Evaluation does not arise. However, the provisions relating to
Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors will be comphed once Independent

Directors are appointed. @V
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6. Meeting of Independent Directors will be convened once independent directors are
appointed.

15. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE

During the year under review, the two seties of Non-Convertible Debentures of the Company
amounting to Rs. 360 crores and Rs, 244.39 crores respectively continued to be listed on
BSE. The Company has paid the listing fee for the financial year 2019-20.

16. DISCLOSURES

1. Conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange outgo

All efforts are being made by the Company for conservation of energy. The nature of
operations of the Company does not involve technology absorption and as such no
disclosures are required to be made in this regard.

The Company has neither incurred any expenditure nor earned any income in foreign
currency during the year under review.

2. Particulars of Employees

The information required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below:

a) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remumeration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year 2018-19:
Not applicable as no remuneration was paid to any director.

b) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary in the financial year:
The Company had not paid any remuneration to any Director and it does not have any
Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director/Whole-time Director or Chief Financial
Officer during the year. There is no increase in remuneration paid to the Company
Sccretary.

c¢) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year:
Not Applicable as there is only one employee in the Company.

d) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2019:
Onc employee.

e) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employces other than the
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile
increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and point out if there are
any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

Parsvaath Rail Land Project Pvt. Ltd.
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Not applicable as there is no managerial remuneration paid by the Company during
2018-19.

f) Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:
The Company affirms that remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the
Company.

2} As per Section 197(12) of the Act read with the Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 details of employees drawing a
remuneration of more than Rs.102 lakhs per annum, if employed throughout the financial
year and Rs. 8.5 lakhs per month, if employed for part of the financial year need to be set
out as annexure to this Report. However, none of the employees come under the purview
of this section and hence, the said provisions are not applicable.

Further, as per the notification of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) dated June 30, 2016
requiring the list of top ten employccs, the required information about the only employee of
the Company is furnished below:

S Name Designation/ | Qualifications Remuneration | Experience Daie of Age Last Number & %
. Nature of (Rs.) {Years) Joining {Years) Employment | of shares held
N dulies held in the
o Company as at
March 31,
2019
Number | %
1| Mr. Vipul Company LL.B., FCS§ 15,65,004 33 21.04 2013 50 Assotech Lid. Nil Nil
Kumar Secrelary and FICWA
Goel
Notes:

1. The Company had only 1 employce during the financial year ended March 31, 2019.

2. The nature of employment is contractual. Other terms and conditions of the employment
are as per Company’s policy,

3. The employee has adequate expcricnce to discharge the responsibilities assigned to him
and his designation is indicative of his nature of duties.

4. The employee is not a relative of any Director of the Company.

3. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013

There were no loans, guarantees or investments made by the Company under Section 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 during the year under review.

4. Extract of Annual Return

Extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT-9 as required under section 92 of the Companies
Act, 2013 1s annexed herewith as Annexure II to this Report.

/,\_L—/pr @/
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17. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy to identify the risk associated with the
business of the Company, to review the risks and concemns and dcvice measurcs to resolve
them w.e.f. from July 30, 20135,

18. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has cstablished and adopted a Vigil Mechanism Policy in the meeting of the
Audit Committee held on July 30, 2015. The Company through the Audit Committee
oversees the genuine concemns expressed by the employees and other Directors.

This Policy mechanism intends to cover serious concerns that could have grave impact on
the operations and performance of the business of the Company and malpractices and events
which have taken place, suspected to have taken place, misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or
suspected fraud, violation of company rules, manipulations, negligence causing danger to
public health and safety, misappropriation of monies, and other matters or activity on account
of which the interest of the Company is affected and formally reported by whistle blowers
concerning its cmployees.

19. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding Corporate Social
Responsibility are not applicable to the Company.

20. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE
REGULATORS/ COURTS/TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN
STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

There are no orders passed by the Regulators/Courts/Tribunal which would impact the going
concern status of the Company and its future operations.

21. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS AND SYSTEMS

There is an adequate internal controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India. ‘/)‘ M ~ @V _
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22. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Board of Directors of the Company hereby states that, during the ycar under review, the
Company has complied with the applicable Sccretarial Standards issued by The Institute of
Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government.

23. GENERAL

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following
items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise;
Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to the employees of the Company under

any scheme;
3. The Company has no Managing Director or Whole-time Director and none of the Non-
executive Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or commission from its

holding or subsidiary company.
4. There were no cases filed /reported pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the year under

review.
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Parsvnath Rail Land Project Pvt. Ltd.

Atul Jain Arvind Kumar Mishra
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Upender Jajoo & Associates
Company Secretaries

Form MR 3
Secretarial Audit Report
(For the Financial Year ended on 31+ March, 2019)

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel] Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members
PARSVNATH RAIL LAND PROJECT PRIVATE LIMITED

Parsvnath Tower
Mear Shahdara Metro Station
Shahdara, Delhi-110032

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by PARSVNATH RAIL LAND PROJECT PRIVATE
LIMITED (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable hasis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and

expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct ol secretarial
audit, | hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2019, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism

in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

| have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by The Company for the financial year ended on 31% March 2019 according to the

provisions of:

i The Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) and the Rules made thereunder;
11. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA") and the Rules made
thereunder; e

L‘-. Page 1 of §
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b)

d)

e)

)

Upender Jajoo & Associates
Company Secretaries

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder to

the extent of Regulation 55A - Not applicable;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment

and External Commercial Borrowings;

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (“SEBI Act”) to the extent applicable to the

Company:-

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantal Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit
Period)

The Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)

Regulations, 2015;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 200%;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based employee Benefits)

Regulations, 2014; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)

Regulations, 2008 ;(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an [Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client to the extent of securities issued; (Not Applicable to the Company during the
Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,

2009; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998; (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period}.
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Upender Jajoo & Associates
Company Secretaries

| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions

of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the

following observations:

The Company has not complied with the provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act

2013, relating to appointment of Independent Director and Woman Director.

The Company has not complied with the provisions of sections 177 and 178 of the
Companies Act 2013, relating to Constitution of Audit Committee and Nomination and

Remuneration Committee.

The Company has not complied with the provisions of section 138 of the companies acl

2013, relating to appointment of Internal Auditor.

The Company has not complied with the provisions of section 203 of the Companies act

2013 for the appointment of whole time Key Managerial Personnel.

The Company has not complied with the provisions of section 134 of the Companies act

2013, relating to Performance Evaluation Mechanism,/Policy (Independent Director).

The Meeting of Independent Director was not convened during the period under

rEVIEw.

| further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper halance of
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors subject to above mentioned
observations. The changes, if any, in the composition of the Key managerial personnel
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with

the provisions of the Act.
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Upender Jajoo & Associates
Company Secretaries

2. Adequate notice are given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda
and detailed notes on agenda were sent in advance, and a system exists for seeking
and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and tor meaninghul participation at the meeting.

3. All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out
unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or
Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

4. The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of
the Act; and

5, There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during
the year under review under the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depuositories Act, and Rules,
Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the Company, Its

Directors and Officers.
1 further report that
Based on the information received and the records maintained, there are adequate systems

and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company

to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Upender Jajoo & Associates
Company Secretaries

Upender Jajoo
FCS: 10155
C.P.: 14336
Date: 09/08/2019
Place: New Delhi

Note: This report should be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A
and forms are integral part of this report.
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Upender Jajoo & Associates
Company Secretaries

Annexure-A to the secretarial Audit Report

To,

The Members,

M/s PARSVNATH RAIL LAND PROJECT PRIVATE LIMITED
Parsvnath Tower

Near Shahdara Metro Station

Shahdara, Delhi-110032

My Report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the Management of the Company.

2. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these cecretarial records based on my audit,

3. | have followed the audit practices and processes as Were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification
was done on the random test basis to ensurc that correct facts are reflected in secretarial
records. | believe that the processes and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis

for my opinion.

4. | have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of Financial Records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have gbtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events et

i

6. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of Management. Our examination was limited to
the verification of procedures on random test basis.

7 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viahility of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted
the affairs of the Company.

For Upender Jajoo & Associates
Company Secretaries

Upender Jajoo
FCS: 10155
C.P.:14336
Date:; 09/08/2019
Place: New Delhi
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Annexure I1

FORM NO. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies {Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i}|CIN U45203DL2011PTC227343

ii) | Registration Date 11-11-2011
iii}|Name of the Company Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
iv)|Category / Sub-Category of the Private Company by its Articles/ Public Company being a

Company

subsidiary Public Company.

Address of the Registered office and
contact details

Parsvnath Tower, Near Shahdara Metro Station, Shahdara,
Delhi- 110032,

Telephone No. 011-43010500

Fax No.011-43050473

Emalil Id- secretarial @parsvnath.com

vi)|Whether listed company (Yes/No)

Yes

Name, Address and Contact details of
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any

vil})

M/s Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C-13 Pannatal Silk Milis Compound, LBS Marg, Bhandup West,
Mumbai 400 078.

Telephone No. 022-25963838

Fax No.022-25946969

Email Id: accounts@linkintime.co.in

I. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be
stated:-
Sl. |Name and Description of main NIC Code of |% to total
No. [products/Services the Product/ |turnover of
Service the
Company
N.A.
IIIl. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE
51, [Name and Address of the CIN/GLN Holding/ | Y% of | Applica
No. (Company Subsidiary | shares ble
[Associate | held | Section
Parsvnath Developers Limited L45201DL1990PLC040945 Holding 85.10% (2(87)(ii)
Company

AUL'@




IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) _ Category-wise Shore Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change
during the
year
Demat Physlcal Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total

Shares Shares

A. |Promoters:
{1} |Indian
a)|Individual fHU F* . 6 6 . . 6 6
hi|Central Govt
<} State Govt
d) | Bodies Corp. 1.19.954 - 1,19,994 85.10 1,19,994 - 1,19,994 85.10
&) |Banks/Fl
1| Any Other
Sub-total [A) (1):- 1,19.994 6 1.20,000 85.10 1,19.994 6 1,20,000 @5.10
(2) |Foreign

al |NRIs - Individuals

b} | Other - Individuals

c) | Bodies Corp.

d}|Banks/fFL

€] |Any Other
Sub-total {4)(2):-
Total shareholding of
Promoter
(A) = (AN1)+(AN2Z) 1,19.994 6 1,20,000 §5.10 1,19,994 ] 1,20,000 85.10
*Equity Shares held by 6 Individuals at A.{1)a] are held as nominee of the Body Corporate at A.{1jd).

B. |Publlc Shareholding

1 |Institutions

a) | Mutual Funds

b}| Banks/Fl

c]| Central Govt
d) [State Govi[s}
e]| Yenture Capital Funds

1] msurance Companies
)| Flis

h]|Foreign Yenture Capital
Funds

i) |Others [Spectfy)

Sub-tokal (B} [1):-

2 |Non-Institutlons

a] | Bodies Corp.

ladian

Overseas 21,011 21,011 1490 21,011 21,011 1490

h)| Individuals

i) | Individual shareholders
hulding nominal share
capltal uptn Re, 1 Lakh

Individual shareholders
helding aominal share
capital in excess of Rs.
1 Lakh

—

ii})| Others {Specity)

Sub-total (B) {2):- 21,011 21,011 1490 21,011 Z1,011 14.90

Total public
shareholding

(B} = (B)(1)+(B)(2) 21,011 21,011 14.90 21,011 21,011 14.90
€ |Shares held by Custodian
for GDR=s & ADRs
Grand Total (A+B+C) 1,19.993 21,017 1.41.011 100.00 1,19.994 21,017 1,41.011 100.00 .

‘/,\H,



{ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sl Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the | Shareholding at the end of the year | % Change
No, year during the
year
No.afshares | % of total | % of Shares | Mo. of shares | % of total | %6 of Shares
shares of | Pledged/ sharesof | Fledgedy
the encumbcred the encumbered
Company to total Company to total
shares shares
1 [Parsvnath Developers Ltd. [PDL) 1.19,994 g85.10 50,03 1,119,994 B5.10 5903
2 [Pradeep Kumar |ain {Neminee of PDL) 1 1
3 _|Nutan Jakn [(Nominee of PDL) 1 1
4 |Sanjeev Kumar Jain (Nominee of PDL) 1 1
5 [Rajeev Jain (Nominee of PDL) 1 1
6 [Yogesh Jain [Nominee of PDL) 1 1
7 _|Neelam Jain (Nominee of PDL) 1 1
Total 1,20,000 B5.10 59.93 1,20,000 85.10 59.93
{iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change
si. Shareholding at the beginning of the | C lative Shareholdlng during the
Na. yvear year
Na. of shares % of total Mo. of shares 94 of tatal
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year
Crate wise Increase/Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g :
allotment/bonus/ftransfer/sweat
equity etc.]
At the end of the year
{iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
sk Shareholding at the beginning of the | Cumulative Shareholding during the
No. year year
For each of the Top 10 No. of shares %4 af votal Mo. of shares % of total
Shareholders shares of the shares ot the
Company Company
Tango Investment Holdings Led.
At the beginning of the year
Equity Shares 21,011 1.96 21,011 4.96
Compulsorily Converlible Preference 282,974 66.74 282074 56,74
Shares S . 82, \
Total 3,032,985 71.7 303,985 71,7
Date wise Increase/ Decrease in
Promoters Share holding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g. -
allotment/bonus/ransfer /sweat
equity etc.)
Atthe end of the year (or date of
seperation, if seperated during the
year)
Egulty Shares 21,011 496 21,011 496
g;:::-}::lsorlly Convertible Preference 282,974 66.74 2.82.974 66.74
Total 3,03,985 71.7 303,985 T1.7
{¥) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
Sl Shareholding at the beglnning of the | Cumulative Shareholding during the
Mo ¥ear year
For each of the Directors and KMP Nao. of shares 0% nf total Ma. of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
Company Company
Al the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase/Decrcasc in
Promoters Share holding during the
year spacifying the reasons for
increase fdecrease (e.g
allotment/bonus/transfer fsweat
equity cte.)
At the end of the vear

=S



VII. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel Personnel

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager:

Sl
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total Amount
(Rs))

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in Section 17(1) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2} Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in liew of salary
under Section 17(3) Income
Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

|28}

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

Others, please specify

Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE




B. Remuneration to other directors:

SL
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Directors

Total Amount
(Rs.))

™r. Atul Jain

Mr. Rahul
Kumar
Srivastav

Mr. Raj Kumar |Mr. Vivek Garg

Jain

Independent Directors

Fee for attending
board/committee meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive
Directors

Fee for attending
board/committee meetings

Cormission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B} - {1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration
(A+B)

Overall Cealing as per the Act

L. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/Manager/WTD:

Sl
No

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Total Amount
(Rs.)

CEO

Company
Secretary

Mr. Vipul
Kumar Goel

Gross Salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in Section 17(1) of
the Income Tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income Tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in liew of salary
under Section 17(3) [ncome
Tax Act, 1961

Stock Option

&

Sweat Equity

Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

Others, please specify

Total

Ceiling as per the Act

Not Applicable

15,65,004

15,65,004

15,65,004

15,65,004

N
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V1. Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans Unsecuied Loans | Deposits |Total Indebtedness
excluding
deposits (Rs.) (Rs.)
(Rs.) {Rs.)

Indebtedness at the beginning of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount 6,79,39,00,000 2,57,70,19,000 9,37,09,19,000
ii) [nterest due but not paid 1,74,58,000 - 1,74,58,000
iii) Interestaccrued but not due 13,58,14,000 8,47,51,000 22,05,65,000

Total (i+ii+iii) 6,94,71,72,000 2,66,17,70,000 2,60,89,42,000
Change in Indebtedness during
the financial year

Addition

Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the
financial year
i} |Principal Amount 6,79,39,00,000 2,57,70,19,000 9,37,09,19,360
ii) [Interest due but not paid 8,70,94,000 - 8,70,94,000.00
iii} |Interest accrued but not due 13,58,14,000 7,65,38,000 22,05,65,000

Total (i+ii+iii) 7,01,68,08,000 2,65,36,07,000 9,59,14,84,360

PRl %




VIIl. PENALTIES/PUNISHMEHT /COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

Section of Brief Details of

Companies
Act g fees imposed

Authority
the Description | Penalty/Punishm | [RD/NCLT/Co
ent/Compoundin urt]

Appeal made, if
any (give details)

A. COMPANY

T~

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

€. OTHER OFFICERS
IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Date: 09.08.2019
Place; Dethi

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Parsvnath Rail Land Project Pvt Ltd

P

Atul Jain

Director

DIN: 00102555
B-4 ¥/F, Guru Ram
Dass Nagar, Laxmi
Nagar, Delhi
110092

g

Arvind Kumar

Mishra
Director

DIN: 08250280

Add: L-429, Mangol
Puri, North West
Delhi 110083



S.N.Dhawan & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF PARSVNATH RAIL LAND PROJECT
PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Parsvnath Rall Land Project Private Limited
("the Company”}, which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2019, and the statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2019, and its loss, total comprehensive
loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the yvear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS financial statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (*the ICAI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 20 to Ind As financial statements, which indicates material uncertainty
related to the outcome of the legal dispute.

Our report is not modified in respect of this matter

Information Other than the Ind AS Financlal Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

¢ The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other Information. The other
information comprises of the Director’s Report. This report is expected to be made available to
us after the date of this auditor's report.

» Our opinlon on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we
will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

e In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

421, Nl Floor

Udyog Vihar, Phase IV
Gurgaon - 122016, Haryana
Tel: +91 124 481 4444

S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP is registerad with limitad Nabliity wilh
idaniification number AAH « 1125 and Its regislered ofice
alD-74, Malcha Marg, New Daknl - 110021, India




e This report have not been made available to us till date of this audit report, we are unable to
comment, whether any information in this report is materially inconsistent with the Ind AS
financial staterments of the Company.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Saction 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
compieteness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggrepate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professlonal skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls,

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures




» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
avents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
N our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may causa the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii}
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order/CARO 2016™), issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit,

(b)  Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Lass including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this
Report are in agreament with the books of account.

(d)  Inour opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March,
2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.




(fy  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B.

{g)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
the requirements of Section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the company has not paid any remuneration to its directors during the year.

(h)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Ind AS financial statements which would impact its financial position - Refer
Note 20 to the Ind AS financial statements:

li. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer Note 19 to the Ind AS
financial statements;

iifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:000050N/NSQQ045

&

Yinesh Jain
Partner
Membership No.: 087701

Place:; Delhi
Date: 29 May, 2019



“ANNEXURE A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date to the members of Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited on the
Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2019)

vi.

vii.

viil.

The Company does not have any fixed assets and hence reporting under clause (i) of CARO
2016 is not applicable.

The Company dees not have any inventory at year-end and hence reporting under clause (ii)
of the CARO 2016 is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnership or
other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013, hence reporting under clause (iii} of CARO 2016 is not applicable.

In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in
respect of grant of loans. The Company has not made any investments and as explained to
us, has not provided any guarantees or securities,

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits from the public.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

a. Other than for significant delays in delays in deposit of Income Tax, the Company has
generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Service Tax and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities during the year. We are informed that the provisions of the Employees
Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Act, 1952 and Employees State Insurance Act, 1948
are not applicable to the Company and that the operations of the Company during the
year, did not give rise to any liability for Sales Tax, Value Added Tax, Service Tax, Excise
Duty and Custoems Duty.

b. There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax,
Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31
March, 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,
except for Tax Deducted as Source (TDS) and interest thereon amounting to Rs. 795.68
lakhs which has remained outstanding as at 31 March, 2019 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable..

€. There are no dues in respect of Income Tax, Value Added Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax,
Customs Duty and Excise Duty which have not been deposited as on 31 March, 2019 on
account of any dispute.

In our opinlen and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not taken any loans or borrowings from banks, financial institutions and government and
has not issued any debentures.

The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the term loans have been applied by the Company during the year for the purpose
for which they were raised, other than temporary deployment pending application.




Xi.

Xii.

xiii.

Xiv.

XV,

Xvi,

¥

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us,
no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees
has been noticed or reported during the year.

The Company has not paid / provided any managerial remuneration and hence reporting under
clause (xi) of the CARC 2016 is not applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xil) of the CARO 2016
is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is
in compliance with Section 188 and 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of
CARO 2016 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of
its subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence provisions of
section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934,

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain
Partner |
Membership No.: 08770},

N ;.?
Place: Delhi -

Date: 29 May, 2019
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‘Annexure B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Parsvnath
Rall Land Project Private Limited on the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the
year ended 31 March 2019)

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 201% in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controis based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the company's business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference te financial statements based on our audit. We ¢conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk, The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
8 basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with

nce te fi i ents—.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with refarence to
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financlal Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2019, based
on based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S.N. Dhawan & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:000050N/N500045

<
Vinesh Jain

Partner
Membership No.: 08

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May, 2019



Parsvnath Raill Land Project Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2019

In terms of our report attached

For S. N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No. 0000S0N/N500045

-@"@

Vinesh Jain
Partner
Membership No. 0877011 -

Place: Delhi
Date; 29 Mav,2019

Notes As at As at
31-March-19 - -
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Assetls
1. Non-current assets
a. Financial assets
i. Other financial assets 3 1,34,434.91 1.34,794.96
k. Tax assets 5 50.43 91.72
Total non-current assets 1,34,485.34 1,34 886.68
Current assets
a. Financial assets
i, Cash and cash equivalents 4 104.24 0.73
ii. Other financial assets 3 1.16 6.69
b. Other current assets 33 33.12 20.83
Total current assats 138.52 28.25
Total assets 1,34,623.86 1,34,914.93
Equity and Liabilities
1. Equity
a. Eauity share capital 7 14,10 14,10
b. Convertible preference share capital 8 28.30 28.30
C. Other equity 9 472.15 1.800.48
Total Equity 514,55 — 184288
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 10 86,209.19 86,209.19
Total non-current liabilities 86,209.19 86,209.19
Current liabilities
a. Financtal liabilities
i Borrowings 10 7,500,00 7,500.00
il Trade Pavables 11
a. Total outstanding dues of micro - =
enterorises and small enterprises
b. Total putstanding dues of creditors 232.65 91.31
other than micro enterprises and
small enterorises
iii.  Other financial liabilities 12 39,245.45 38,549.23
b.  Other current liabilities 13 919,21 719.65
c. Provisions 14 2.81 2.67
Tatal current liabilities 47.900.12 46,862.86
Total liabilities 1,34,109.31 1,33,072.05
Total equity and liabilities 1,34,623.86 1,34,914.93
See accompanying notes o the financlai statements 1-32

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rahul Kumar Srivastav
Diractor
DIN: 08250331

LY

Atul Jain
Director
CIN -00102555



Parsvnath Rail Land Profect Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss account for the year eanded 31 March, 2019

III

IV

VI

VII

VIII

IX

Notes Year ended Year ended
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Other income 15 267.24 247.60
Total income 267.24 247.60
Expanses
a. Employee benefits expense 16 16.94 17.55
b. Finance costs 17 1,407.31 1,207.35
c. Other expenses 18 160.83 70.50
Total expenses {III) 1,585.08 1,295.80
Profit/{loss) before tax {II-1II) (1,317.84) (1,048.20)
Tax expense/( benefit):
[l Tax adiustment for earlier years 10.49
10.49 -
Profit/(loss) for the vear (IV - V) {1,328.33) {1,048.20)
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year (VI+VII) {1,328.33) (1,048,20)
Earnings per equity share (face value Rs. 10 per share) 25
(1) Basic (in ) {942.01) (743.35)
{2) Diluted (in ) {842.01) {743.35)
See accompanying notes Lo the financial statements 1-32
In terms of our report attached
For S, N. Dhawan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Rahul! Kumar Srivastav ain

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reqistration No. QO00SON/NS0G0045
%’P )
h : Atdi J

Vinesh Jain
Partner 5 Director Director
Membership No. 081 DIN: DB250331 DIN -00102555

Place: Deihi
Date: 29 May,2019




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Equity Share Capltal

Particulars Rs. In lakhs
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 14.10
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 14.10
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 14.10
Preference share capital
Particulars Rs. In lakhs
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 28.30
Changes in preference share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 28.30
Changes in preference share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 28.30
Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars Securities
premium ::::ii:e:l Total
reserve g

Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 4,264.05 (1,415.37) 2,848.68
Profit/(loss) for the year - {1,048.20) (1,048.20)
Other comprehansive income for the year - - -
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 4,264.05 (2,463.57) 1,800.48
Profit/(loss} for the year - (1,328.33) {1,328.33)
Other comprehensive income for the year - = =
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 4,264.05 (3,791.90) 472.15
See accompanying notas to the financial statements 1-32

In terms of our report attached

For S. N. Dhawan & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration Na. 000050N/N5S00045

O

Vinesh Jain
Partner

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May,2019

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

=

Rahul Kumar Srivastav Jain
Director Director
DIN: 08250331 DIN -00102555




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Notes Year ended Year ended
_31 March, 2019 =31 March, 2018
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the vear (1,317.84) {1.048.20)
Adjustments for :
Finance costs recoanised in statement of profit and loss 1,407.31 1,207.35
Interest income recoqnised in statement of profit and loss (267.24) {247 60}
{177.76) (88.45)

Movements In working capital:
{Increase)/decrease in other non current financial assets - -
{Increase)/decrease in other current financial assets 5.52 {6.69}
{Increase)/decrease in other non current financial assets 267.50 (1,100.00)
{Increase)/decrease in other current assets (12.29) 291.03
increasef{dectease) in trade payables 141.34 66.08
Increase/{decrease) in provisions D.14 0.74
Increase/{decrease) in other financial liabilities 81.48 {244.30)
Increasef{decrease) in other current tiabilities 199.56 202.79
Cash generated from operations 505.49 (878.30)
Income tax paid (net} 30.80 {24.75)
Net cash flow from/{used in) operating activities 536.28 (903.05)
Cash flows from Investing activities
Decrease/(increase) in deposits under lien not considered 45.46 109.14
as cach and ¢ash equivalents
Interest received 314.33 208.21
Net Cash flow from/{used in) investing activities 35¢9.78 317.35
Cash flows from financing activitles
Interest paid {792.56}% {1,435.67)
Proceeds from borrowings - 2,000.00
Repayment of borrowings 2 =
Net Cash flow from/{used in) financing activities (792.56) 564.33
Net increase in Cash and cash equivalents 103.51 {21.37)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear 0.73 22.10
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4 104.24 0.73

1} The staement ef cash flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect method' as set out in Ind AS 7 on ‘Statements of cash flows',
2) Figures in brackets indicate cash outNows,

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-32
In terms of our report attached

For S. N. Dhawan & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm's Reqistration No. 000050N/N500045

Vinesh Jain Rahul Kumar Srivastav Atul Jain
Partner | Director Director
Membership No, 0 OIN: 08250331 DIN -00102555

Place: Delhi
Date: 29 May,2019



Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

As at As at
31-March-19 31-March-18
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
3 . Other financial assets
Non-Current
a, Security deposits to related party B832.50 1,100.00
b. Deposits with bank held as margin money 4,130.23 4,175.68
c. Interest accriued on deposits - 47.10
d. Claim with RLDA on deemed cancellation of project 1,29,472.18 1,29,472.18
{see note 20} 1,34,434.91 1,34,794.96
Current
8. Advances to related parties 1.16 6.69
1.16 6.69
4 ., Cash and cash equivalents
a. Balances with banks in current account 104.06 0.73
b. Cash on hand 0.18 .00
104.24 0.73
5. Tax assets (net)
a. Tax refund receivable 50.43 91.72
50.43 91.72
6. Other assets
Current
a. Prepaid expenses 32.82 20.53
b. Advances to supplj 0.30 0.30

33.12 20.83




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

7. Equity share capital

As at As at
- h-1 - -
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

Authorised share capital
2,90,50,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each 2,905.00 2,905.00

(as at 31 March, 2018; 2,90,50,000)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid share capital
1,41,011 fully paid equity shares of Rs 10 each 14.10 14.10
{as at 31 March, 2018: 1,41,011)

14.10 14.10

7.1- Reconciliation of share capital

Number of Share Capital

Shares
Rs. In Jakhs
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 1,41,011 14.10
Moavements during the vear - =
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 1,41,011 14.10
Movements during the year & .
Balance as at 31 March, 2019 1,41,011 14.10

7.2 - Rights, prefarances and restrictions attached to aach class of equity shares

The Company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of ¥ 10 per share, Each shareholder is
entitled to one vote per share . The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their

7.3- Details of share held by the holding company, its subsidiaries and associates

As at As at

No. of gshares No. of shares
Holding company
Parsvnath Developers Limited 1,20,000 1,20,000

7.4- Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5%

As at March 31, 2019 As at March 31, 2018
Number of : Number of - 2
shares held % holding .. res held o holding
Fully paid eguity shares
Parsvnath Developers Limited 1,20,000 85% 1,20,000 85%
Tango Investmen : 21,011 15% 21,011 15%




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

8. Convertible preference share capital

As at As at

31-March-19 31-March-18
Authorised share capital Rs.in lakhs Rs.in lakhs
3,00,000 Class A -Cumulative convertible preference
share of Rs. 10 each (as at 31 March, 2018: 300,000
shares) 30.00 30.00
Issued and subscribed capital
282,974 Class A -Cumulative convertible preference
share of Rs. 10 each {as at 31 March, 2018: 282,974
shares) 28.30 28.30

28.30 28.30

8.1- Reconclliation of share capital

Number of Share Capltal

shares
Rs. In lakhs
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 2,82,974 28.30
Movements during the year - -
Balance as at 3t March, 2018 2,82,974 28.30
Movements during the year - -
Balance as at 31 Maich, 2019 2,82,974 28.30

8.2 - Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to each class of equity shares

Each CCPS shall compulsorily convert at the Conversion Price of the CCPS at the end of 18 years from the
allotment, date into equity shares as per terms of the Amended and Restated Envestors and Security Holders
Agreement dated 21 August 2013. The holders of Class A CCPS can also seek conversion into Equity shares
prior to the end of the term as set out in the agreement,

8.3 -Details of shares held by each sharaholder holding more than 5% shares

As at As at
31-March-19 31-March-18
Mumber of % holding of Number of % holding of
Shares held this class of Shares held this class of
shares shares

2,82,9749 100% 2,82,974 100%




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Privata Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

As at As at

= = _31-March-18
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs

Other equity
a. Securities premium reserve 4,264.05 4,264.05
b. Retained earnings {3,7591.90) (2,463.57)
472.15 1,800.48
a. Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 4.264.05 4,264.05
Movements = -
Balance at the end of the year 4,264,05 4,264,05
b. Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year {2,463.57) (1,415.37}
Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,328.33) {1,048.20)
Balance at the end of the year (3,791.90) (2,463.57)

a. Securities premium - The amount raceived in excess of the face value of the equity shares and
convertible preference shares issued by the Company is recognised in securities premium.

b. Retained earnings - Retained earnings are profitsflosses of the Company earned Lilf date,




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limitad

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

10. Borrowings

Non current

Unsecured - at amortised cost

a.

0.1% Optionally convertible debentures Series X of Rs. 1 lakh

(31IMal‘Ch,2019: 6,550; 31 March 2018: 6,550;
optionally convertibie debentures of Rs 1 lakh each)

0.1% Optionally convertible debentures Series ¥ of Rs. 1 lakh

( 31 March,2019: 16,000; 31 March 2018:16,000;
optionally eonvertible debantures of Rs 1 lakh each)

Series X and ¥ holders have right but not obligation at any time
prior to 12 months from the allotment date to convert in
secured rated, redeermable, cumulative, non-convertible
debentures of the Company on identical terms and rights as the
NCD B series debentures or into equity shares on the expiry of
the tenure or in case of EQD both X and Y QCD shall be
compulsorily and obligatorily converted into equity shares as set
out in the Optionally Convertible debentures Subscription
aareements dated August 21. 2013.

All Series X and Series Y OCD are compulsority and obligatorily
to be redeemed on expiry of 10 years term or earlier at a
premium as set out in the Qptionally Convertible Debenture
subscription agreement dated August 21, 2013.

Interest on Series X and Series ¥ OCDs is cumulative and is
payable within 5 days from the date of conversion / date of
redemption as applicable.

17.50% OQptionally convertible debentures Series B of Rs, 1040
(31 March, 2019: 3,09,5634; 31 March 2018:3,09,634;
optionally convertible debentures of Rs 1,040 aach)

The Series B OCDs are redeemable at par value on or prior to
the maximum term of 20 (twenty) years, or shall compulsorily
stand converted into one equity share each in order to give
effect to the terms of the Amended and Restated Investors and
Security Holders Agreement dated 21 August 2013,

Interest is compounded annually and payable on 31 March every
year subject to availability of surplus operating cash flow or
befaora rademption, anytime out of operating surplus cash flows
or on redemption date.

Secured - at amortised cost

a.

15% Redeemable non convertible debentures Series A of Rs. 1
lakh each

{31 March,2019: 360; 31 March 2018; 360;

redegmable non convertible debentures of Rs 1 lakh each)

15% Redeemabie non convertible debentures Series B of Rs. 1

lakh each
{31 March,2019: 24,439; 31 March 2018:24,439 debentures)

As at As at
31-March-19 31-March-18
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
6,550.00 6,550,00
16,000.00 16,000.00
3,220.19 3,220.19
36,000.00 36,000.00
24,439.00 24,439.00
86,209.19 86,209.19




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Both redeemable NCD are secured by first and second charge
respectively by way of hypothecation of assets, contracts
receivables, all present and future book debts, outstandings,
monies receivables, claims and receivables together with all and
any interest accruing thereon and exclusive charge respectively
in favour of the Debenture Trustee in respact of the leasehold
rights of the Company over such site parcels Jeased by the RLDA
to the Company upon payment of the second lease instalment
and in respact of the remaining site parcels by execution of the
subsequent Indenture of mortgage.

Interest is compounded annually and payable on 31 March avery
year subject to availability of surplus operating cash flow or on
before redemption anytime out of operating surplus cash flows
or on redempticn date.

Debentures are redeemable after the expiry of a period of 36
months but before the expiry of 120 months from the date of
allotment l.e. 20 December, 2012 and 21 August, 2013
respectively.

As at As at
31-March-19 31-March-18
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
Borrowings
Current
Secured - at amortised Cost
a. Loans from othar parties 7.500.00 7,500.00
7,500.00 7,500.,00
As at As at
Security details 31-March-19 31-March-18
i, Pledge of 51% of shareholding of the company held by the holding
company with Non-Dispasal Undertaking for balance shareholding by its
sharehofders
i First exclusive charge on the current assets & fixed assets {including
hypothecation of all the book debts, operating cash flows, receivables,
etc.) of the company
iii. First pari passu charge/assigniment/mortgage of leaschold rights of the
RLDA project, project contracts, rights, goodwill and cother intangible
assets; mortgage of inmovable assets; hyp of movable assets including
receivables of the cormpany
iv. Corporate guarantee of holding company 7,500.00 7,500.00
v, Personal guarantee of Sh. Pradeep Kumar Jain
vi. Pledge of 16.73 mn shares of holding company on pari passu basis
vii. Mortgage B hypothecation of receivables {on pari passu hasis) of the
following properties
1. Hotel plot situated in Jodhpur owned by PHL
2. Rohtak township praject
3. land situated in Indore owned by holding company
4. City Centre Bhiwadi owned by holding company
5. School land at Sonipat
Interest is payable monthly @ 16.00% plus IBR increase. Loan
was repayable on 05 Qctober, 2018 and is overdue as on date.
Amount Ne. of
Rs. In lakhs days
Default in repayment of borrowinas
a. Principal 7,500.00 176
b. Interest 234,35 1-89 days
239.55 90 to 179 days
397.04 Over 180 days

870.94




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited

Notes to the financial! statements for the year endad 31 March, 2019

11.

12,

13.

14.

Trade pavablas

Current
Trade pavables

Note:
As per the information available with the Company, trade payables
do not include any amount due to Micro and Small Enterprises as
defined under 'Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developments
Act, 2006' (MSMED Act, 2006} and no interest has been paid or
payable in terms of MSMED Act, 2006,

Other financial liabilities

Currant

Interest accrued but not due on debenture
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Interest accrued and due on borrowings
Security deposit received

Payables ¢n assignment {see note 20}

Due to holding company

mpoenow

Other liabllities

Current
a. Statutory liabillties

Provisions

Current
Emplavee benefits

Braak up:
& Provision for gratuit

Bb.  Provision for

As at As at
31-March-19 31-March-18
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
232.65 91.31
232.65 91.31
2,124.02 2,124.02
= 81.62
870.94 17458
0.10 0.10
36,168.91 36,168.91
81.48 -
39,245.45 38,549.23
919.21 719.65
919.21 719.65
2.81 2.67
281 2.67
2.66 2.21
0.15 0.46
2.8B1 2.67




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Privaté Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Year ended Year ended
21 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Rs. In lakhs Rs. In lakhs
15. Other income
a. Interest Income :
i. on fixed deposit from bank 256.69 247.60
fi. on income tax refund 10.55 -
267.24 247.60
16. Employee benefits expense
8. Salaries and Waqges 16.94 17.55
16.94 17.55
17. Finance costs
a. Interest expenses:
i. on term ioans 1,200.00 1,005.33
il. on delayed payment of statutary dues 110.01 107.32
b. Qther borrowing costs 97.30 94.70
1,407.31 1,207.35
18. Other expenses
a. Insurance - 0.07
b. Rates and taxes 29.90 54.24
c. Bank charges 0.59 0.54
d. Printing and stationery 0.00 0.02
€. Advertisement and business promotion 0.45 0.44
f.  Legal and professional charges 11.07 12.14
g. Payment to auditors 4.72 2.45
h. Reglstration expenses 113.25 -
i. Miscellaneous expenses 0.85 1.00
160.83 70.90
Payment to auditors
i. Statutory audit fee 2.00 2.00
ii. Limited review fee 2.00 -
iii. GSTon abave _———.. 0.72 0.36
iv. Qutof nocket-:é\'i)'cpre /4 - 0.09
less 4.72 2.45
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Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limitad
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

19.

20.

21.

22,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses.

Parsvnath Developers Limited (PDL), the holding Company was selected as bidder for grant of |ease for development
of residential, cammercial and other related infrastructure facllities on plot of land at Sarai Rohilla, Kishanganj by
Rail Land Development Authority (RLDA) vide its ‘Letter of Acceptance’ (LOA) dated 26 November, 2010. Parsvnath
Promoters and Developers Private Limited {PPDPL) was formed as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) for the purposes
of developrnent of the project and RLDA accorded approval on 7 February, 2011 adopting PPDPL as SPV.,

Subsequently as per the requirement of RLDA and their subsequent approvals vide letter dated 3 August, 2012, PDL
incorporated a new SPV Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited {(PRLPPL) for development and implementation of
the project and accordingly all assets and liabilities were transferred by PPDPL to the company,

Due to muitifarious reasons, including the lack of statutory approvals of lay out and building plans to commence
constructions, from NDMC, owing o discrepancies noticed by the NDMC in the title of the Project Land, the Company
was not able to achieve 'Financial Closure’ as per Article 7 of the agreement, which resulted in deemed termination
of the agreement. The Company has invoked the arbitration clause in the development agreement for recovery of
amount paid to RLDA together with interest thereon on deemed termination of agreement by way of instituting two
Arbitrational proceedings namely Arbitration 1 and I1. The Arbitral Tribunal has announced its award in respect of the
Arbitration 11 dated 25th November, 2017 directing RLDA to refund the amount of Rs.103,453.78 lacs along with 4%
interest per annum payable with effect from the 15th July,2015 till the date of recovery.

RLDA had filed its objections under section 34 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 before the Hon'ble Delhi
High Court for seiting aside the said Arbitral Award. However, the Hon'ble Delhi High Court vide its order dated 3
April, 2018 upheld the Arbitration Award., RLDA then filed an appeal under section 37 of the Arbitration and
Conciliation Act, 1996 before the Division Bench of the Delhi High Court. The Hon'ble Delhi High Court dismissed the
appeal filed by RLDA and upheld the order of the Delhi High Court and award of the Arbitral Tribunal vide its
judgment dated 14 March 2019. The Company has also filed an enforcement petition for the enforcement of the
award dated 25 November 2017,

In case of Arbitration I (with respect to RLDA's liability for payment of interast to the Company on instalments
received in excess of and prior to RLDA/s entitlement), the Arbitral Tribunal by award dated 01 June, 2018, rejected
the Company's claim of Rs. 41,946.79 lacs and directed the Company to pay the cost incurred in the proceedings
amounting to Rs. 97.00 lacs. The Cornpany has appealed against the decision before the Hon'ble Delhi High Court
and the matter is in the process of being heard by the Hon'ble High Court.

The Company has also initiated Arbitration Proceedings {Arbitration III), wherein the Company and POL inter-allia
sought refund of the amounts retained as alleged losses, losses incurred on account of RLDA's breach of its
representations and warranties in respect of the land sought to be leased. On RLDA's refusal to appoint its nomines
arbitrator, the Company and PDL approached the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi which nominated an arbitrator for
RLDA. Arbitration proceedings have thereafter commenced.

Advance amount paid to RLDA for allotment of project including amount spent on development of the said project as
been shown as recoverable from RLDA and accordingly reflected in Note 3 : "other non current financial assets™

Considering the facts and based on discussions with legal counsel, the management Is confident of recovering the full
amount from RLDA, as reflacted in the hooks of account.

The holders of non convertible debentures and the Company by way of board's resolution have decided tbat interest
an these debentures will accrue on the date on which the Company achieves the target sale and if sales target is not
achieved by the specified date or such other date as unanimously approved, no interest shall be paid to the
debenture holders. Accordingly, the Company has not accrued any liability for interest on these debentures for the
year.

The holder of optionally convertible debentures Series B has also accorded its approval for moratorium in the accrual
and payment of debenture interest fram 1 April, 2018 to 31 March, 2019. The Board of Directors of the Campany has
alsc approved the waiver of interest for the said period. Accordingly, the Company has not accrued any liability for
interest on these debentures.

Deferved Tax assets

The Company has carried out its tax computation in accordance with mandatory Ind AS -12. There has been a net
deferred tax asset on account of accurnulated losses, However as a prlnaple of prudence, and as there is no yirtual
certainty as on the date cff

assets in near future, thg Lo




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

232,

24,

a5.

Employee benefit plan

The Company offers its employees defined benefit plan in the form of a gratuity scheme. Benefits under gratuity
scheme are based on year's of service and employee remuneration. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to
vested employees at retirement, death while on employment, resignation or on termination of employment.

Amount is equivatent to 15 days salary payable far each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of 6
menths, Vesting accurs upon completion of S years of continuous service.

The following table sets out the amount recognised in respect of gratuity in the financial statements:

As at As at
31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs
Liability at the beqinning of the year 2.21 1.58
Current service cost 045 0.63
Paid during the year - .
Liability at the end of the vear 2,66 2.21
Expensed recoqnised in the Statement 0.45 0.63

of Profit and Loss

Segment reporting
The Company is engaged in the business of ‘Real Estate’. For management purposes, there is single reportable
segrment. Accordingly disclosure required by Ind AS 108 "Operating Segment” have not been provided in the financial

statements.

The Company operates in single geographical area of India. Accordingly, geographical information has not been
reported.

There is no singie customer contributed 10% or more to the Company's revenue during the year 2018-19 and 2017-
18.

Eamings per share
Year endad Year ended

31 March, 2019 31 March, 2018

i Net loss for calculation of basic and diluted Rs. In lakhs {1,328.33) (1,048.20}
earnings per share

it Weighted average number of equity shares Numbers 1,41,011 1,41,011
outstanding during the year

i,  Basic and diluted earnings per share Rs. (942.01) (743.35)

iv.  Nominal value of equity=sk Rs. 10.00 10.00

T o~
ALY,
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Parswnath Rail Land Project Private Limited

26. Related party disclosures

i» List of relatad parties (with whom tha Company has transactions during the vear}

{a) Holdina Company
- Parsvnath Developers Limited (PDL)

(b) Fellow subsidiarias

- Parsynath Promoters and Developers Privale Limited (PPDPL)

- Parsvnath Hotels Ltd (PHL)
- Parsvnath Landmark Developers P Ltd { PLOPL}

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

i Balances outetandina/transactions with related partias
PDL PPDPL PHL PLDPL
T z [ 2
{a) Transactions during the year

Security deposit paid - . = .
(1,100.00) (-3 (-} (-]

Security deposits received back 267.50 . -
{-} {-} (- {1

Advances paid 145,57 0.98 - -
(106.11) (0.18) {- =)

Advance received 288.00 - =
(566,13 {-) -) (-}

Advance repaid 206.52 - - -
{566.13) (-) -} (-

Guarantees issued for loan * = =+ =
{-} (- (-} -1

Advances received back - - ) -
(99.60) () {275.000 (2.02)

Transfer of balances - x = 2
-y (-1 {-) (-

Financial guarantees s - ] =
{2.000.00) {3 (-) -3

(b) Balances at year-end

Optionally convertible debenture - Serles B 3,220.19 - - -
{3,220.19 (-1 {-) -3

Interest accrued but not due on QCD's 712.90 - = :
{712.90) -} [ (-1

Short-term Advances - 1.16 = g
{6.51) {0.18) {- {-}

Security deposit (assets) B32.50 - ) %
(1.100.00) {-) {-1 (-

Pavables B81.48 36.168.91 . -
{-1 {356,168.91) (- (-)

Guarantees issuied for loan 7.500.00 = = =
{7,500.00} (- {-} {-)

Notes:

1 Related party transactions entered during the year were in ordinary course of business and are on arm's length

basis

2 Figures in brackets represent figures as at and for the year ended 31 March, 2019.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
All related party transactions antered during the year were in ordinary course of business and are on arm's length
basis. For the year ended 31 March, 2019, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables from related
parties (31 March, 2018 - Nil). The Company makes this assessment each financial year through examination of the
financial position of the refated party and the market condition in which the related party operates.

27, Corporate sacial rgsponsibili
L '-"_-1:- Ll
P 8
In terms of proyisio € of sectio
activities relating t¢ Corporate S
1 Bl

P3R\of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was not required te spend any amount on
\Responsibilities (CSR).
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Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2018

29,

Financial Risk Management

The Company's business operations are exposed to various financial risks such as liquidity risk, market risks, credit
risk, interest rate risk, funding risk etc. The Company's financial liabilities mainly includes borrowings taken for the
purpose of financing company's operations. Financial assets mainly includes claim receivable from RLDA.

The Company has a system based appreach to financial risk management. The Company has internally instituted an
integrated financial risk management framework comprising identification af financial risks and creation of risk
management structure. The financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's
policies on risk management. Key financial risks and mitigation plans are reviewed by the board of directors of the

Company.
Ligquiditv Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may face to meet its obligations for financial liabilities. The objective of
liquidity risk management is that the Company has sufficient funds to meet its liabilities when due. The Company is
under stressed conditions, which has resulted in delays In meeting its liabilities. The Company, regularly monitors
the cash gutflow projections and arrange funds to meet its liabilities.

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted cash outflows:

Rs. in lakhs
Carrying Pavable within Pavable in Pavable morea
amount 1 year 1-3 years than 3 years
As at 31 March, 2019
Borrowings 93,709.19 7.500.00 - 86,209.19
Trade payables 232.65 232,65 - -
Other financiai liabilities 39,245 .45 39,245.45 - -
1,33.187.29 45,978.10 = 86.,209.19
As at 31 March, 2018
Borrowinas 93,709.19 7.500.00 - 86,209.19
Trade payables 91.31 91.31 - -
Other financial llabllities 38,549.23 38,549.23 - -
1,32,.349.73 46,140.543 - 86,209.19
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate due to changes in market prices i.e. interest rate risk and
price risk.

A, Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The
Company is mainly exposed to the interest rate risk due to its borrowings. The Company manages its interest rate
risk by having balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate borrowings. The Company does not enter Inte any
interest rate swaps.

Interest rate sensltlvity analysis

The exposure of the company's borrowing to interest rate change at the end of the reporting perieds are as follows :

As at 31 As at 31 March,
2
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

variable rate borrowings
Long Term -
Short Term -




Parsvnath Rail Land Project Privata Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

30.

31.

32.

Total Variable rate Borrowing

Fixed Rate Borrowings

Long Term 86,209.19 86.209.19
Short Term 7.500.00 7.500.00
Total Fixed rate Borrowing T 93.700.19 .709.19 _ 93.709.19
Total Bortowinag __93,700.19 9370519

Since the Company does not have any variable rate borrowings, there is no impact on profit and loss before tax due
te change in interest rate.

B. Price risk
The Company has very limited exposure to price sensitive securities, hence price risk is not material.
Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that customer or counter-party will not meet its obligation under the contract, leading to
financlal loss. The Company has no trade recetvablas, hance the credit risk is not material,

Capital Management
For the purpese of capital management, capital includes equity capital, share premium and retained earnings. The

The debt-equity ratic at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

As at 31 March, As at 31
i
Rs. in lakhs Rs. in lakhs

Borrowings:

- Long term 86,200.19 86,209.19
- Short term 7,500.00 7,500.00
- Current maturities of lang term - =

borrowings I —

Total borrowings - A 93,709.19 93,709.19
Equity

- Equity share capital 14.10 14,10
- Preference share capital 28.30 28.30
- Other equity 47215 1,800.48
Total Equity - B 514.55 1,842.88
Debt to equlty ratio {A/B} 182.12 50.85

Events after the reporting period

There are no event observed after the reported period which have an impact on the Company's operation.
Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by Board of Directors on 29 May,2019

f of the Board of Directors

A

For and on b

Rahiul Kuma¥ Silivastav

Director Dvirector
DIN: 08250331 DIN -00102555
Place: Delhi

Date: 29 May,2019



Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

1. Corporate Information

Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on 11 November, 2011
as a wholly owned Subsidiary Company of Parsvnath Developers Limited. The Company has been set
up for the business of promotion, construction and development of residential projects.

The company is engaged in the business of promotion, construction and development of a residential
project.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.5

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(hereinafter referred to as the Ind AS) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section

133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
rules, 2015 and Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Upto the year ended 31 March, 2016, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance
with accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read together

with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Previous GAAP").
The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 April, 2015,

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs,
except when otherwise stated.

Basis of measurament and presentation
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis unless otherwise indicated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
sarvices.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition or construction of qualifying assets are
capitalised / inventorised until the time all substantial activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
assets for their intended use are complete, A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits in respect of wages and salaries,
performance incentives, leaves etc. are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense for the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year calculated in accordance
with the Income Tax Act and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previcus years.

1



Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

2.7

2.8

2.9

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding amounts used in the computation of taxable
income. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
racognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Inventories

Inventory comprises property under construction (work-in-progress) and is valued at lower of cost and
net relisable wvalue. Cost includes cost of land, development rights, materials, services, overhead
related to projects under construction and apportioned borrowing costs.

Provlisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.Provisions are determined based on
management estimates required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.These are reviewed
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made. The Company does not recognise a contingent liability, but discloses its existence in the notes
to the financial staternents.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow Statement comprises cash on hand, cash at

bank and short-term deposits with banks with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

2.10 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period and for all period
presented is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, that have changed the number of equity
shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any
attributable taxes} relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of
equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

/



Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would
decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations.
2.11 Current/non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current
classification. An asset is treated as current when it is;

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycie;
] Held primarily for the purpose of trading;
. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period;

* Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current

A liability is treated as current when :

® It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle;

o It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

s It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
2.12 Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time gap between the acquisition of the asset for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company
and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has determined its operating cycle as 48 months for real estate projects and 12 months for
athers for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.13 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair valua. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

2.14 Financial assets
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

/



Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost :

. the asset is held within a2 business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principat amount outstanding.

Ali other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

2.15 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a

financial liability and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs,

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in prefit or loss on the purchase, saie, issue or cancellation of the Company’s

own equity instruments.
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting period.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with recognition and measurement principles of
Ind AS requires the Management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions considered in the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities {including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and
expenses during the year. The Management believes that these assumptions and estimates used in
preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ due to
these estimates and the differences between the actua! results and the estimates are recognised in the
periods in which the results are known/materialise.

Significant judgements and other estimates and assumptions that may have the significant effect on the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities in future years are:

a. Measurement of contingent liabilities and expected cash outflows
b. Provision for expected credit losses

Recent accounting pronouncements

a. Accounting Standard issued but not yet effectiva:
Ind AS 116 - Leases

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116 Leases. Ind AS 116 will
replace the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard
sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for
both parties to a contract i.e., the iessee and the lessor,

/



Parsvnath Rail Land Project Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2019

Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss. The
Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for lessees. There is no significant change
in accounting requirement for lessor. This accounting standard is applicable far accounting period
commencing on or after 1 April 2019, the Company is evaluating the impact of this new accounting
standard on the financial statements.

Amendments to existing accounting standards:

The MCA has also carried amendments to the following existing Ind AS

Ind AS 12 Appendix C - Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty
over Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while performing the determination of taxable
profit {or loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is
uncertainty over income tax treatments under Ind AS 12, According to the appendix, companies
need to determine the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or
group of tax treatments, that the companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing
which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected value of the tax
treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax
credits and tax rates. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the
financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the guidance in Ind AS
12, *Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends
in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally
recognised those past transactions or events.

These amendments will be effective for accounting period beginning on or after April 1, 2019.
These amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements.
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